City of Seattle Request for Proposal #SPU-161

Questions & Answers
The following questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers shall be made part of the Request for Proposal.


	Question #
	Date Received
	Question
	City Response

	1
	10/23/08
	Is your organization currently using any products from BMC Software?
	No

	2
	10/23/08
	Your Specific Business Need?
	See RFP Section 5 – Statement of Work and Specifications; and Section 7.2, #6 - Technical and Functional Response

	3
	10/23/08
	I believe you are actively looking for the solution - Am I correct?
	Yes

	4
	10/23/08
	Brief info about your IT infrastructure??   (e.g. -   # of servers,

what are the apps?  What platform do they run on?   Etc)
	See RFP Section 7.2, #6  – Technical and Functional Response, Architecture tab

	5
	10/23/08
	Do you have an approved and an allocated budget for this project?
	We will obtain final approval of the business case, including the required budget, once we have selected the apparently successful vendor. 

	6
	10/23/08
	Are you the final decision maker (do you sign the check?)   If not kindly clarify
	The Asset Management Committee governing capital projects at Seattle Public Utilities is the final decision maker.

	7
	10/23/08
	What would be the time line for implementation?
	See RFP Section 2.1 – General Objectives; and Section 7.2, #7 – Pricing Proposal, for more information.

	8
	10/23/08
	In which state the implementation of software will take place?
	Washington

	9
	10/24/08
	What is the estimated total value of the contract to be awarded?
	This could vary widely, depending on the product and complexity of implementation.  The value of the contract award will be determined based on the responses to the RFP.

	10
	10/24/08
	What is the anticipated length of the contract period?
	See RFP Section 5.1.8.

	11
	10/24/08
	Is there a Program Manager / Technical Lead associated with this initiative? If so, what is their contact information?
	SPU will supply a business program manager and a technical project manager.  We’re sorry but we cannot release their contact information during the RFP process.  Questions should be directed to RFP161@seattle.gov.

	12
	10/29/08
	I was asked to submit this question via email which regards the Excel spreadsheet (PPM Financials Response).  Within the Scope of Work section, it is often difficult to provide a definitive dollar quote up front for customizations, interface development, and data conversions due to a lack of detailed information on data storage, structure, specific business rules, work flows, detailed desired functionality and other unknowns at this point of the proposal process.  I just wanted to find out if the dollar amount specified here could be caveated with a statement that the value specified is a good faith estimate, but may be higher or lower once a detailed statement of work is defined.  In other words, this number is not construed as a fixed-price and would be billed at a time and materials rate for the actual work performed.
	We appreciate how difficult it is to provide labor estimates when the only source of information is the RFP. Based on the Objectives in Section 2, the Statement of Work and Specifications in Section 5, and the Technical Requirements spreadsheet in Section 7, please provide a realistic, good faith estimate for what it will take to customize and configure your product to meet our specifications.
For technical support for Data Conversion and System Interfaces, the Financial Response spreadsheet has been revised to include 200 hours each for these tasks for evaluation purposes only.  Please enter your Unit Price and complete the rest of the information as appropriate.  

The actual number of hours may increase or decrease according to the terms of the final contract and statement of work.  The contract may also include provisions for additional work orders in certain circumstances.
Please refer to the Revised Pricing Proposal issued as an embedded file in Addendum #1; changes are shown in red.

	13
	10/29/08
	Do you require references that are from state/local government or Utility organizations using an enterprise PPM application running programs that are specific to capital investments. Or is it most important that they are the same size as SPU from a user and organizational  perspective?


	We do not require references from state/local government or a utility. 

 As stated in Section 3.2 (under Minimum Qualifications), you must demonstrate that you have successfully executed and maintained at least five contracts with an organization of similar size to SPU, and the contracts must have been active for a minimum of three years.  References are further addressed in the Management Response (an embedded file in Section 7.2).


	14
	11/4/08
	We understand that this initiative is being led by Seattle Public Utilities.  Is there a specific department that is driving the initiative?  Finance, IT, etc.? 

	This initiative is a cross-functional initiative with broad executive support from Finance, IT, Engineering, Utility Systems Management (SPU's strategic direction and scientific services branch), the Director’s Office, and Field Operations.
 

	15
	11/4/08
	I asked the question on the phone as well.  Is Software as a Service considered a viable option for the City of Seattle?  The reason I ask again is that I did not notice any other SaaS or On-Demand vendors on the call.  The list of vendors I had was Power Steering, Planview, Metaformers, Primavera and CA.  Can you share the entire list of who is responding?
	Yes, we consider Software as a Service to be a viable option at this time.

In response to interest expressed at the Pre-proposal Conference, we published the list of attendees as an embedded PDF in Addendum #1, posted on 10/29/2008 at: http://www.cityofseattle.net/purchasing/pan.htm
In addition to those attending the conference, multiple other SaaS vendors received notice of the RFP when it was first released.

	16
	11/4/08
	In the “Background and Purpose” section, there is a statement that the initial implementation could be rolled out to up to 500 users. However, in section 5.1.5, training is scoped out for up to 300 users.  

Can you please clarify the number of users intended to be included in the initial implementation?  

This is important for us to understand when it comes to putting together the license and maintenance costs for our Financial Response.


	Please assume 300 user licenses in your Financial Response.  (The product needs to be scalable to at least 500 users.)

	17
	11/4/08
	In the “Background and Purpose” section, the statement is made that the initial users will include Management Staff, Portfolio Managers, Project Managers, and Finance.  However, to ensure an accurate Financial Response, I am requesting additional information regarding the use profile of these users.  

Specifically, I need to know how many of the initial set of users will be:

· Entering, maintaining, or changing Project, Resource, Portfolio, Program, and/or Financial data 
· Viewing reports and dashboards only 
· Entering time (hours) against projects 

	Initially, we expect that 220 users will enter, maintain and change portfolio, project, program, resource and financial data.  Another 80 users will be viewers only.  We do not anticipate entering time directly into the system for this phase of the project.

	18
	11/4/08
	The RFP states that the Financial Response will be worth 25 points.  Can you provide some additional information regarding ‘how’ the response will be evaluated?  Meaning, will the score be based on content or completeness of the Financial Response?  


	The Financial Response will be evaluated based on both the price and the completeness of the response. 




	19
	11/5/08
	In Section 5.1.4, it is stated that the vendor will supply enough environments to support SPU’s software methodology.  I am asking for clarification on how many environments that may be.  

Typically, clients work with three environments as follows:

1. Development Environment 
2. Test Environment 
3. Production Environment 
Please advise as to whether three environments is sufficient to support SPU’s software development methodology.  Of, if three is insufficient, please provide the number of additional environments required.


	Three environments will be sufficient:  Development, Test, and Production.

	20
	11/5/08
	Is the PPM system intended to support IT projects only or will it be required that it be capable of supporting non-IT projects. The reason I ask this question is that non-IT  projects can have very different 
requirements and design criteria i.e. construction projects, etc
	The PPM system must be capable of supporting both non-IT and IT projects.  See also Section 3.2 in Minimum Requirements.

	21
	11/6/08
	I am hoping you can provide some explanation of Source Code Escrow.  This is a concept that I am unfamiliar with.  From reading Section 5.3.1, I presume the use of an Escrow Account and Agent is to ensure the City has timely and consistent access to source code releases and updates.  Can you confirm?  

If that is the case, I am wondering if the manner by which we release our code will suffice.  When new versions or fix packs are released, the updated software code is posted to our Support site.  Every client [of this product] is given an account on this site, and therefore, has on-demand access to the most recent code available, as well as the accompanying documentation. 

If this is not a viable solution, can you please provide any reference materials that may help me understand the concept of a Software Escrow Account and Agent more completely?

	The purpose of the Source Code Escrow provision is to ensure that the City has timely and consistent access to source code releases and updates, and also to protect the City’s interests in case a Vendor goes out of business.
The release process you describe would be an acceptable alternative.

	22
	11/6/08
	Within the Architecture section of the Technical Response, it mentions that the preferred application server to be used would be Oracle's Application Server.  Could you let me know which version of the Oracle Application Server is used within your infrastructure?

For instance:

Application Server 10gR3 (10.1.3.3)

Application Server 10gR2 (10.1.2.0.2)

Application Server 10g SE One (10.1.2.0.1)

If unknown, we will assume the latest application server.


	SPU currently uses two versions of Oracle Application Server for different applications.  Current versions in use include:

· Oracle Application Server Release 2 (10.1.2.3.0); Portal version 10.1.4.2.0

· Oracle Application Server Release 2 (10.1.2.0.2); Portal version 10.1.4.0.0

	23
	11/7/08
	We are considering proposing GSA as the contract vehicle for this procurement.  This offers some advantages to the City over negotiating a “one-off” agreement.  Is this acceptable?

	The City will evaluate proposals that comply with the Terms and Conditions per Attachment #2 of the RFP.  In your proposal, you can request consideration of an “exception” for each Section, offering alternative language, such as GSA, and why it would be in the City’s best interest to accept it.  See Section 6.11 of the RFP.


	24
	11/10/08
	Is the PPM system intended to support IT projects only or will it be required that it be capable of supporting non-IT projects. The reason I ask this question is that non-IT  projects can have very different requirements and design criteria i.e. construction projects, etc


	Please see Question #20 above received on 11/5/08.

	25
	11/11/08
	Are vendors notified as to when changes are made to the RFP / Addendums?


	Please see Sections 6.5 and 6.6 of the RFP for more information on this topic.  The City publishes changes / addenda to the RFP, as well as responses to all vendor questions, on the City’s Purchasing website at:  http://www.cityofseattle.net/purchasing/pan.htm
It is the vendors’ responsibility to learn of any changes or notices issued by the City.


	26
	11/11/08
	Are there any process artifacts available in terms of the governance lifecycles that are currently implemented or specifics around business rules related to cost management and strategic alignment / prioritization?  We would like to understand this a little better in order to estimate our efforts in business process consulting.


	Many project delivery improvement initiatives are underway at SPU, and process artifacts are not currently available.

Generally, our governance process has several components.  Annually, our proposed budgets are adopted by the City Council, which establishes placeholder funding for capital projects.  We then require two phased approvals by our Executive Team – approval of an exploratory business case to proceed with options analysis and preliminary engineering, and approval of an implementation business case to proceed with design, construction, implementation, and stabilization.

Business rules related to cost management and strategic alignment / prioritization are under development.

	27
	11/12/08
	In the SPU PPM RFP, there are references to SPU's willingness to evaluate multiple software delivery mechanisms (i.e. Hosted, SaaS, Internally Hosted).  
 

For the Financial Response, is it appropriate to provide the pricing information for each of these options, or should only one delivery mechanism be provided?

	At your option, you may provide pricing information for multiple delivery channels, if appropriate, but this is not required. 

If you choose to provide pricing for more than one delivery model, you MUST submit a Technical Response and a Financial Response for EACH delivery channel in your proposal.

This will enable the Evaluation Team to rate each model for functionality (how well the proposed solution meets the requirements) as well as cost.

We would expect that most proposals will focus on what the Vendor perceives to be the best all-around value (both in terms of benefits and cost) for SPU.
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